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HISTORIC LANDMARK COMMISSION 

JUNE 25, 2018 

DEMOLITION AND RELOCATION PERMITS 

HDP-2018-0252 

3012 UNIVERSITY AVENUE / 101 W. 31ST STREET 

 

PROPOSAL 

Demolish a ca. 1922 multifamily building. 

 

ARCHITECTURE 

Two-story, rectangular-plan, hip-roofed wood-frame building. The building is clad in stucco 

and has a formal entry porch on University and a smaller entry porch on W. 31st Street. 

Fenestration chiefly consists of 2:2 wood-sash windows. 

 

RESEARCH 

The building at 3012 University Avenue/101 W. 31st Street was built around 1922 as a 

single-family residence. William C. “Billy” Disch, UT’s head baseball coach, appears to have 

been the first owner; he occupied the house with his family from ca. 1930 until ca. 1935. 

William G. and Lydia E. Eyres were also living in the house by 1932. By 1935, William 

Eyres had died and the Disch family had moved out. Lydia Eyres continued to occupy the 

house with her sons until she died in 1939. 

 

In 1944, the building was converted to a duplex; six years later, it was converted to a 

fourplex. Despite these multiple units, only one tenant is listed at a time in city directories, 

and no tenant after Mrs. Eyres remained in place for more than six years. The building 

appears to have been vacant for much of the 1950s and 1960s. 

 

STAFF COMMENTS 

The building does not appear to meet the criteria for designation as a historic landmark. 

 

Designation Criteria—Historic Landmark 
1) The building is more than 50 years old, having been constructed ca. 1922. 

2) The building retains a moderate degree of integrity. The stucco cladding was likely 

added ca. 1940 (per a building permit for 103 W. 31st Street, an associated property 

next door), and some small additions have been constructed. The entry porch is 

likely not original. 

3) Properties must meet two historic designation criteria for landmark designation. 

The property appears to demonstrate significance according to one of the criteria 

(City of Austin Land Development Code, Section 25-2-352). 

a. Architecture. The building does not appear to possess architectural 

distinction. 

b. Historical association. The building’s first owner was William C. Disch, who 

earned prominence as head baseball coach at UT from 1911 until 1939. He 

lived in the house for approximately 13 of his 28 years of head coaching. This 

may be a historically significant association; however, there is at least one 

other property in Austin more strongly associated with Disch’s baseball 

legacy. Though Disch-Falk Field was constructed in 1975, more than 20 years 

after Disch’s death, it bears the coach’s name and is dedicated to the sport 

that made him a UT legend (see photographs on p. 10). 

c. Archaeology. The property was not evaluated for its potential to yield 

significant data concerning the human history or prehistory of the region. 
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d. Community value. The property does not appear to possess a unique location, 

physical characteristic, or significant feature that contributes to the 

character, image, or cultural identity of the community, Austin, or Texas. 

e. Landscape feature. The property is not a significant natural or designed 

landscape with artistic, aesthetic, cultural, or historical value to the city. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Encourage rehabilitation and adaptive reuse of the building. If the Commission votes to 

release the permit, then staff recommends relocation over demolition, and completion of a 

City of Austin Documentation Package, consisting of photographs of all elevations, a 

dimensioned sketch plan, and a narrative history, for archiving at the Austin History 

Center. 
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PROPERTY INFORMATION 

Photos 

 
Primary (east) façade and north elevation of 3012 University Avenue/101 W. 31st Street. 
 
 

Occupancy History 

City directory research, Austin History Center 

By Historic Preservation Office staff 

June 2018 

 

1922 William J. and Anna Disch 

 Assistant Director, Physical Training for Men, UT 

 

1932-33 W. J. and Anna Disch and children, owners (101 W. 31st Street) 

 Coach, UT 

 W. G. and Lydia Eyres, owners (3012 University) 

 No occupation listed 
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1935 Mrs. L. E. Eyres, owner 

 Widow, William G. Eyres 

 Georgie Eyres, renter 

 

1937 Mrs. L. E. Eyres, owner 

 No occupation listed 

 

1939 Lydia E. Eyres and child, owner 

 Widow, William G. Eyres 

 George W. Eyres, renter 

 Plumber 

 Wesley G. Eyres, renter 

 No occupation listed 

 

1942 Vacant 

 

1944-45 Mrs. L. E. Eyres, owner 

 L. E. Eyres not listed in regular directory 
 

1947 The Honorable Mallory B. and Margaret D. Blair 

 Associate Justice, Texas State Court of Civil Appeals 

 

1949 Ray and Hallie Smith, owners 

 District manager, American General Life Insurance Company 

 

1952 Frank E. and Jessie P. Homeyer 

 Frank worked at the Lamar Launderette 

 Jessie worked as a private secretary, Colr. Internal Revenue 

 

1955 Vacant 

 

1959 No return 

 

1962 Brian W. Schenk 

 Teacher, Baker Junior High School 

 

1968 Vacant 

 

1977 Robert Cooper 

 Student 

 

 

Biographical Research 

William Disch was born in 1874 in Missouri to parents who had immigrated from 

Switzerland and Germany. His family moved to Milwaukee in 1886, and Disch began 

coaching baseball in 1898 at Sacred Heart College in Watertown, Wisconsin. He also played 
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professionally in Sioux Falls, South Dakota (1900-02), Fort Worth (1903-04), and Galveston 

(1905-07). He coached baseball at St. Edward’s University from 1900 to 1910. 

 

In 1911, Disch joined UT’s coaching staff. The Handbook of Texas History notes, “From 

1911 until his retirement in 1940, Disch’s teams won twenty-one out of a possible twenty-

six baseball championships.” He served as head coach from 1911 until 1939 and as advisory 

coach until 1951; in 1922, UT students voted him “the most popular man ever connected 

with the University.” The news article that announced the vote lauded Disch as the most 

successful coach in any UT sport and one able to make “misfit nines…hopeless appearing 

aggregations [into] winning baseball machines.” Disch Field was named for him when 

constructed in 1947, as well as the replacement Disch-Falk Field (1975). Called the “Grand 

Old Man” of Texas baseball, “Uncle Billy” Disch was posthumously inducted into the Texas 

Sports Hall of Fame, the Longhorn Hall of Honor, and the College Baseball Coaches 

Association Hall of Fame. 

 

Disch married Anna Marie Kuck in 1909. They had four children. The Disches lived at 101 

W. 31st Street from 1922 until about 1935. By that year, the Disches had moved southeast 

one block to 3006 Speedway. William Disch died in 1953. 

 

Anna Marie Kuck Disch was born in 1882 in Sheboygan, Wisconsin to German immigrant 

parents. While married to William Disch, she worked as a homemaker and was active in 

the Woman’s Missionary Society of University Methodist Church, hosting meetings in their 

home. She lived in 3006 Speedway until her death in 1963. 
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News story, The Austin Statesman, 11/29/1922. 

 

 
News story, The Austin American, 5/22/1932. 
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News story, The Austin Statesman, 5/23/1938. 

 

 
“Uncle Billy” Disch in 1949, from the Neal Douglass Collection, Portal to Texas History. 
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Billy Disch obituary, The Austin Statesman, 2/3/1953. 
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Lydia Elizabeth Eyres (nee Fry) was born in 1856 in Jackson, Tennessee. She married 

William G. Eyres, a Canadian immigrant and architect, in 1886 and the couple had at least 

four children. No occupation is listed in city directories. She died in 1939. 

 

Images of Disch-Falk Field at the 
University of Texas. 
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Lydia Eyres obituary, The Austin Statesman 3/10/1939. 

 

 

Building Permits 

 

Water tap permit, 8/22/1944. This is likely associated with the permit (below) to convert the house 
into a duplex. 
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Building permit issued to H. M. Hatter to convert a residence into a duplex, 8/29/1944. 
 

 
Water service permit for Apt. A issued to Felix Williams, 12/6/1950. 
 



 D.8 - 13 

   13 

 

 

 
Water service permit for Apt. B issued to Felix Williams, 12/6/1950. 
 

 
Water service permit for Apt. C issued to Felix Williams, 12/6/1950. 
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Water service permit for Apt. D issued to Felix Williams, 12/6/1950. 
 

 


